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The Shaver House is a two-and-one-half storey Neo-Colonial Revival structure.
The roof is a combination of hips, truncated-hips, and gables. The front
(east) facade of the structure has a two-storey, full-length gallery from
which a gable roof projects. The upper gallery is supported by Ionic columns
and linked by bowed balustrades which are composed of turned members. On the
bottom level the gallery has straight turned balustrades and Tuscan columns.
A garland frieze separates the upper and lower porches. A third porch with
two-storey Ionic columns projects from the two-storey gallery. The third
porch is a pedimented gable with a Palladian window. There are five gabled
and shed additions on the rear. Entrance is gained from a single centered
door with an oval glazed panel. Windows are symmetrically placed. The struc-
ture is finished in weatherboard. The entrance is a single,oval,glazed panel
door with oval sidelights and a rectangular transomg

Interior

The interior plaster walls have been removedjyand dry wall will be hung in their
place. A single-turn stair leads to the second floor. The stair is composed
of turned members. A jigsaw-cut and ball-and=-spindle transom separates the
entrance from the parlor. The house will be restored to as near original con-
dition as is possible.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Judge Benjamin Shaver House in Mena, Arkansag,is a large dwelling that
is both architecturally and historically significant. The frame Neo-Colonial
Revival structure is distinguished by the design and detailing of a two-
storey gallery that spans the facade (east elevation). The house is a
reminder of the early settlement of Mena. It was built in 1896, only two
years after Mena was incorporated. The house is also associated with two
of Mena's most historically significant citizens, Judge Benjamin Shaver and
his daughter, Dorothy Shaver. Judge Shaver was a prominent lawyer in Mena,
and Dorothy Shaver was the Presdient of the Lord and Taylor retail corpora-
tion in New York City. The corporation operated the prestigious Lord and
Taylor department store. For a brief period during the 1940's the house
served as the Mena General Hospital. The building was converted for use

as a hospital because of its large size.

Mena was founded along the Kansas City Southern Railroad when it laid track
through southwest Arkansas in 1894. Among the early settlers in Mena was
Judge Benjamin Shaver, who quickly became one of the city's top lawyers.
Shaver's home, which he built in 1896, was one of the largest and most elegant
dwellings in the new community. The house was an important gathering place
for social events.

Dorothy Shaver grew up in the Shaver House. After college she joined a
sister, Elsie, who was an art student in Chicago. The two sisters created
and sold dolls which became famous under the name of "Little Shavers."
Dorothy Shaver's first contact with the New York firm of Lord and Taylor

was brought about by the sale of "Little Shavers" to the company. Her
career with Lord and Taylor was spectacular and was capped by her attainment
of the company's presidency.

Dr. L. C. Dixon, a Mena dentist, occupied the Shaver House for a number of
years after it was vacated by the Shavers. From 1940 to 1945 the house

was converted for use as the private Redman Hospital. For a brief time
after 1945 the building housed the Mena General Hospital. After its service
as a hospital, the Shaver House was divided into apartments. Mr. and Mrs.
Lloyd Rice have recently acquired the house, and they are committed to re-
storing the house to its early grandeur.
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The facade of the two-and-one-half-storey Shaver House is symmetrical.
Additions to the rear of the house give the building an irregular config-
uration. The age of these additions is not known. The roof form is a
multiple combination of gables and hips.

The most outstanding visual feature of the Shaver House is the two-storey
gallery that spans the facade (east elevation). The gallery is symmetrical
and is divided into five bays. The central bay is a forward projection that
is sustained by two pairs of two-storey Ionic columns. This projection is
pedimented; a Palladian window centers the pediment. The two bays which
flank the central bay are distinguished by the curving edge of the frieze
which divides the first from the second stories.

Four Tuscan columns support the first floor of the gallery)and four Ionic
columns sustain its second storey. The capitals to the Ionic columns have
been removed. A frieze, which is ornamented with garland festooning,

divides the first and second floors of the gallery. Both levels of the
gallery originally possessed a full balustrade that featured turned spindles.
Parts of these balustrades are missing, but the owners of the house are re-
storing them to their original appearance.

The first floor entrance is a single door that is centered by an oval glazed
panel. Lights with oval glazed panels flank the entrance. The door and
lights are surmounted by a transom. The second storey balcony is centered
by a plain double-leaf doorway.

The window arrangement is symmetrical. The windows are rectangular, one
over one (1/1), and double-hung.

The interior retains little of its original fabric, but it is currently
being restored to its original appearance. The architectural significance
of the Shaver House rests entirely with its exterior appearance.
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"“u[:l A[?KANSAS HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROGRAM
Suite 500, Continental Building - Markham and Main - Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 Phone: (501) 371-2763

November 7, 1979

Ms. Carol Shull

Acting Keeper of the National Register
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service
Department of the Interior

Washington, D.C.

Dear Ms. Shull:

Please find below the verbal boundary description of the Shaver House
as requested by your office:

The North 120 feet of Lot 1 and the East 9.5 feet of the North
120 feet of Lot 2 all in Block 4 of Olmsted's Subdivision of
Block 9 in Eureka Addition to the City of Mena, Arkansas, as
per the recorded plat thereof, fronting 109.5 feet on Port
Arthur Avenue and 120 feet on 12th Street.

If we may be of further assistance in regard to the processing of the
Shaver House nomination, please inform us.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Joan
State

11iams Baldridge
istoric Preservation Officer

« JWB/fb

A Division of the Department of Natural & Cultural Heritage
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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Garland County Courthouse

! Shaver, Judge Benjamin, House

Honorable Dale Bumpers

Honorable David Pryor
donorable John P. Hammerschmidt

f NR Byers/bjr 12/12/79

Location

Hot Springs
Garland County

Mena
Polk County

Also Notified

State Historic Preservation Officer

Ms. Joan Baldridge

Director, Arkansas Historic Preservation
Program

Suite 500, Continental Building

Markham and Main Streets

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201





